

Thy name shall be great

@ 2018 by Abidoye Adetokunbo

1st publication December 2018

A publication of Reality Apostolic Ministry

305 Monksbridge

Maryborough Village

Portlaoise

Co. Laois

Republic of Ireland

Website: http://thepathofrighteousness.com/reality-daily-prayer-books

Email: info@reality.ie

All scriptural quotations are from the Kings James version Cover illustration by Abidoye Adetokunbo.

All rights reserved

Commercial Reproduction in whole or part without written permission of the author is prohibited

Appreciation

First, my appreciation goes to God for making this book a reality. Secondly, I thank my family for their support and encouragement

Abstract

Welcome to another publication by Reality Daily prayer, titled "thy name shall be great", greatness is something we all desire, but comes with a price. In this book we shall learn the various biblical references and prayers to making our names great in the land of the living.

Genesis 12:2-3 KJV

And I will make of thee a great nation, and I will bless thee, and make thy name great; and thou shalt be a blessing: [3] And I will bless them that bless thee and curse him that curseth thee: and in thee shall all families of the earth be blessed.

I decree upon your life that from this day on your name shall be great even greater than anyone in your family in the name of Jesus

Your name is set free from bewitchment in the name of Jesus

Agenda of your enemies over your destiny shall receive divine frustration in the name of Jesus

The Lord will move you from where you are to where he wants you to be in the name of Jesus

You will possess the gates of your enemies and tear them down this season in the name of Jesus.

Greatness is living a fulfilled life and be beneficial to God and mankind

Table of contents

		Page
1.	Appreciation	3
2.	Abstract	4
3.	Table of contents	6
4.	They that hate me shall stumble and fall	8
5.	Lazarus is dead	11
6.	They shall be food for the Lion	17
7.	Dealing with die hard enemy	22
8.	Danger of emptiness	24
9.	Lord! Make me visible	28
10	.What the enemies wants by force	31
11	.Lord increase my faith	34
12. Second year anniversary		37
13	.Chosen by God used by Satan	39
14	.Value with Fire	43
15. Something must happen		47
16	. Double portion	53
17	. Surely enchantment shall not prosper against me	56
18	.Knowing your God	58
19. Angelic visitation		64

20. Their plans must surely fail	69	
21. Why seek ye the living among the dead	75	
22. The mighty things about your life	78	
23. Great disappointment	80	
24. The message of Jonah "Repent or perish"	84	
25. The Lord departed from him	87	
26. Miracle that is beyond measure	92	
27.21 Midnight prayer to scatter the enemies that refused to		
sleep	95	
28. Victory with Psalms	99	
29. Evil spirit in a life	103	
30.21 Violent prayer to destroy dream wasters	108	
31. Collecting divine reward	115	
32. Escaping the evil in the heart of man	120	
33.21 prayers to break loose from personal, collective	and	
ancestral captivity	126	
34. About the Author	132	

They that hate me shall stumble and fall

Psalm 27:2 KJV

When the wicked, even mine enemies and my foes, came upon me to eat up my flesh, they stumbled and fell.

Esther 6:7-14 KJV

And Haman answered the king, For the man whom the king delighteth to honour, [8] Let the royal apparel be brought which the king useth to wear, and the horse that the king rideth upon, and the crown royal which is set upon his head: [9] And let this apparel and horse be delivered to the hand of one of the king's most noble princes, that they may array the man withal whom the king delighteth to honour, and bring him on horseback through the street of the city, and proclaim before him, Thus shall it be done to the man whom the king delighteth to honour. [10] Then the king said to Haman, Make haste, and take the apparel and the horse, as thou hast said, and do even so to Mordecai the Jew, that sitteth at the king's gate: let nothing fail of all that thou hast spoken. [11] Then took Haman the apparel and the horse, and arrayed Mordecai, and brought him on horseback through the street of the city, and proclaimed before him, Thus shall it be done unto the man whom the king delighteth to honour. [12] And Mordecai came again to the king's gate. But Haman

hasted to his house mourning, and having his head covered. [13] And Haman told Zeresh his wife and all his friends everything that had befallen him. Then said his wise men and Zeresh his wife unto him, If Mordecai be of the seed of the Jews, before whom thou hast begun to fall, thou shalt not prevail against him, but shalt surely fall before him. [14] And while they were yet talking with him, came the king's chamberlains, and hasted to bring Haman unto the banquet that Esther had prepared.

Haman lost honour, dignity and respect before Mordecai, he thought the king was about to honour him more but unfortunately, it was the reverse, the man he hated and plotted for his destruction now became the kings chosen for honour, all those that must be disgraced for your name to be great shall be disgraced openly in the name of Jesus.

Prayer

- 1. Heavenly father the lifter of the head of the poor, accept my thanks for you will lift up my heads among my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 2. Father Lord let my Haman be the one to announce my promotion in the name of Jesus

- 3. Lord Jesus bring the head of the wicked to shame and let them lose their position of authority in the name of Jesus
- 4. Those oppressing me day and night shall stumble and fall in the name of Jesus
- 5. Father Lord sit me among princes and those in high places in the name of Jesus
- 6. All those saying it is over for me shall suffer open shame when the lord lift me up in the name of Jesus
- 7. Household wickedness tormenting my destiny with witchcraft shall die suddenly in the name of Jesus
- 8. Those drawing power from the sun and moon to afflict me run mad in the name of Jesus
- 9. My head shall not run dry of the oil of favour in the name of Jesus
- 10. O Lord bless me and let my enemies those that hate me be cursed in the name of Jesus

Lazarus is dead

John 11:14-44 KJV

Then said Jesus unto them plainly, Lazarus is dead. [15] And I am glad for your sakes that I was not there, to the intent ye may believe; nevertheless let us go unto him. [16] Then said Thomas, which is called Didymus, unto his fellowdisciples, Let us also go, that we may die with him. [17] Then when Jesus came, he found that he had lain in the grave four days already. [18] Now Bethany was nigh unto Jerusalem, about fifteen furlongs off: [19] And many of the Jews came to Martha and Mary, to comfort them concerning their brother. [20] Then Martha, as soon as she heard that Jesus was coming, went and met him: but Mary sat still in the house. [21] Then said Martha unto Jesus, Lord, if thou hadst been here, my brother had not died. [22] But I know, that even now, whatsoever thou wilt ask of God, God will give it thee. [23] Jesus saith unto her, Thy brother shall rise again. [24] Martha saith unto him, I know that he shall rise again in the resurrection at the last day. [25] Jesus said unto her, I am the resurrection, and the life: he that believeth in me, though he were dead, yet shall he live: [26] And whosoever liveth and believeth in me shall never die. Believest thou this? [27] She saith unto him, Yea, Lord: I believe that thou art the Christ, the Son of God, which should come into the world. [28] And when she had so said, she went

her way, and called Mary her sister secretly, saying, The Master is come, and calleth for thee. [29] As soon as she heard that, she arose quickly, and came unto him. [30] Now Jesus was not yet come into the town, but was in that place where Martha met him. [31] The Jews then which were with her in the house, and comforted her, when they saw Mary, that she rose up hastily and went out, followed her, saying, She goeth unto the grave to weep there. [32] Then when Mary was come where Jesus was, and saw him, she fell down at his feet, saying unto him, Lord, if thou hadst been here, my brother had not died. [33] When Jesus therefore saw her weeping, and the Jews also weeping which came with her, he groaned in the spirit, and was troubled, [34] And said, Where have ye laid him? They said unto him, Lord, come and see. [35] Jesus wept. [36] Then said the Jews, Behold how he loved him! [37] And some of them said, Could not this man, which opened the eyes of the blind, have caused that even this man should not have died? [38] Jesus therefore again groaning in himself cometh to the grave. It was a cave, and a stone lay upon it. [39] Jesus said, Take ye away the stone. Martha, the sister of him that was dead, saith unto him, Lord, by this time he stinketh: for he hath been dead four days. [40] Jesus saith unto her, Said I not unto thee, that, if thou wouldest believe, thou shouldest see the glory of God? [41] Then they took away the stone from the place where the dead was laid. And Jesus lifted up his eyes, and said, Father, I thank thee that thou hast heard me. [42] And I knew that thou hearest me always: but because of the people which stand by I said it, that they may believe that thou hast sent me. [43] And when he thus had spoken, he cried with a loud voice, Lazarus, come forth. [44] And he that was dead came forth, bound hand and foot with graveclothes: and his face was bound about with a napkin. Jesus saith unto them, Loose him, and let him go.

Message was sent to Jesus that Lazarus was dead, the message could be termed as prayers, request, petition and demand. To the amazement of the mourners, Jesus turned their mourning into joy when he raised Lazarus from dead.

That power is still available today to turn sorrow, mourning, and sadness into dancing and joy.

Lazarus is dead means

- 1. The situation is hopeless
- 2. Irreversible
- 3. Done with
- 4. All over

No matter the situations you are passing through, Jesus will turn it around if you call upon him.

Prayer

- 1. Father Lord I thank you for your authority and power over all situations and to raise the dead accept my thanks in the name of Jesus
- 2. Lord Jesus I plead for mercy over all the sins I've committed have mercy in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord release your fresh fire of faith and hope upon me to always look unto you in the name of Jesus
- 4. Jesus Christ of Nazareth I surrender all unto you take control of every situations in the name of Jesus
- 5. Father Lord by your authority and power bring back to life
- my destiny
- my career
- my glory
- my ministry
- fire on my altar
- health
- talent and spiritual gifts
- peace, joy, laughter and happiness

In the name of Jesus

- 6. My Lazarus hear the voice of Jesus and come out of the grave in the name of Jesus
- 7. Power of the grave lose your Hold over the soul of my Lazarus and let him go in the name of Jesus
- 8. Any power that wants to keep my Lazarus in the grave you are a liar die in the name of Jesus
- 9. Agenda of the enemies over my Lazarus be frustrated in the name of Jesus
- 10. Grave yard cloth upon my destiny be roasted by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 11. Enemies of my existence my God shall disgrace you in the name of Jesus
- 12. Lord Jesus do not abandon my Lazarus in the grave in the name of Jesus
- 13. Any good things in my life that is in the grave of the enemies come out by fire in the name of Jesus

- 14. Anything that belongs to me that is in the grave with any dead relatives hear the voice of Jesus and come out by fire in the name of Jesus
- 15. Powers fighting the rising of my star from the grave I set you on fire in the name of Jesus
- 16. Father Lord give me divine understanding of my environment and the destroyers therein in the name of Jesus

They shall be food for the lions

Psalm 63:9-10 KJV

But those that seek my soul, to destroy it, shall go into the lower parts of the earth. [10] They shall fall by the sword: they shall be a portion for foxes.

The bible says in Daniel 6:3-24 KJV

Then this Daniel was preferred above the presidents and princes, because an excellent spirit was in him; and the king thought to set him over the whole realm. [4] Then the presidents and princes sought to find occasion against Daniel concerning the kingdom; but they could find none occasion nor fault; forasmuch as he was faithful, neither was there any error or fault found in him. [5] Then said these men, We shall not find any occasion against this Daniel, except we find it against him concerning the law of his God. [6] Then these presidents and princes assembled together to the king, and said thus unto him, King Darius, live for ever. [7] All the presidents of the kingdom, the governors, and the princes, the counsellors, and the captains, have consulted together to establish a royal statute, and to make a firm decree, that whosoever shall ask a petition of any God or man for thirty days, save of thee, O king, he shall be cast into the den of lions. [8] Now, O king, establish the decree,

and sign the writing, that it be not changed, according to the law of the Medes and Persians, which altereth not. [9] Wherefore king Darius signed the writing and the decree. [10] Now when Daniel knew that the writing was signed, he went into his house; and his windows being open in his chamber toward Jerusalem, he kneeled upon his knees three times a day, and prayed, and gave thanks before his God, as he did aforetime. [11] Then these men assembled, and found Daniel praying and making supplication before his God. [12] Then they came near, and spake before the king concerning the king's decree; Hast thou not signed a decree, that every man that shall ask a petition of any God or man within thirty days, save of thee, O king, shall be cast into the den of lions? The king answered and said, The thing is true, according to the law of the Medes and Persians, which altereth not. [13] Then answered they and said before the king, That Daniel, which is of the children of the captivity of Judah, regardeth not thee, O king, nor the decree that thou hast signed, but maketh his petition three times a day. [14] Then the king, when he heard these words, was sore displeased with himself, and set his heart on Daniel to deliver him: and he laboured till the going down of the sun to deliver him. [15] Then these men assembled unto the king, and said unto the king, Know, O king, that the law of the Medes and Persians is. That no decree nor statute which the king establisheth may be changed. [16] Then the king commanded, and they brought Daniel, and cast him into the den of lions. Now the king spake and said unto Daniel, Thy God

whom thou servest continually, he will deliver thee. [17] And a stone was brought, and laid upon the mouth of the den; and the king sealed it with his own signet, and with the signet of his lords; that the purpose might not be changed concerning Daniel. [18] Then the king went to his palace. and passed the night fasting: neither were instruments of musick brought before him: and his sleep went from him. [19] Then the king arose very early in the morning, and went in haste unto the den of lions. [20] And when he came to the den, he cried with a lamentable voice unto Daniel: and the king spake and said to Daniel, O Daniel, servant of the living God, is thy God, whom thou servest continually, able to deliver thee from the lions? [21] Then said Daniel unto the king, O king, live for ever. [22] My God hath sent his angel, and hath shut the lions' mouths, that they have not hurt me: forasmuch as before him innocency was found in me; and also before thee, O king, have I done no hurt. [23] Then was the king exceeding glad for him, and commanded that they should take Daniel up out of the den. So Daniel was taken up out of the den, and no manner of hurt was found upon him, because he believed in his God. [24] And the king commanded, and they brought those men which had accused Daniel, and they cast them into the den of lions, them, their children, and their wives; and the lions had the mastery of them, and brake all their bones in pieces or ever they came at the bottom of the den.

Those that planned to destroy Daniel ended up as meals for the lions. In the same way, I stand before the creator of heaven and earth and decree that all those that wants you dead because of your calling shall end up in the belly of the lions in the name of Jesus.

I want you to pray violently against unseen conspiracy, I want you to pray against those that hates your destiny, I want you to pray enemies wasting prayers against your enemies and shout like this

Prayer

- 1. Conspirators that wants me eating up by the lions die in the name of Jesus
- 2. All those that wants my sudden disappearance from the land of the living shall go down to the lower part of the earth
- 3. All those wishing for my disgrace and shame shall be disgraced permanently in the name of Jesus
- 4. O Lord my father rescue my soul from the mouth of the lions in the name of Jesus

5. My father feed all those that hates me and my family to the lions in the name of Jesus

Dealing with Die hard enemy

Acts 23:12-14 KJV

And when it was day, certain of the Jews banded together, and bound themselves under a curse, saying that they would neither eat nor drink till they had killed Paul. [13] And they were more than forty which had made this conspiracy. [14] And they came to the chief priests and elders, and said, we have bound ourselves under a great curse, that we will eat nothing until we have slain Paul.

To deal with this enemy you need killer and die hard prayers. Beloved it is an invitation to early grave to undermine the power of some enemies. Some enemies are so deadly and dangerous that the only way to solve their problems is violently attacking them before they carry out their attack.

Prayer

1. I decree by the authority in the name of Jesus that those under strange covenant to destroy me shall die in the name of Jesus

- 2. O God arise and turn the counsel of dangerous enemies to foolishness in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord expose and render useless all secret plots of the enemies to destroy me in the name of Jesus
- 4. Die hard enemies the Lord break you to pieces in the name of Jesus
- 5. Die hard enemies die suddenly in the name of Jesus

Danger of emptiness

Matthew 12:29,43-45 KJV

Or else how can one enter into a strong man's house, and spoil his goods, except he first bind the strong man? and then he will spoil his house. [43] When the unclean spirit is gone out of a man, he walketh through dry places, seeking rest, and findeth none. [44] Then he saith, I will return into my house from whence I came out; and when he is come, he findeth it empty, swept, and garnished. [45] Then goeth he, and taketh with himself seven other spirits more wicked than himself, and they enter in and dwell there: and the last state of that man is worse than the first. Even so shall it be also unto this wicked generation.

Do you know that been empty is dangerous and deadly and that is what most people are?

To be empty means

- lacking the infilling of the holy spirit
- Little or no word of God
- spiritual stagnancy
- spiritual laziness
- spiritual bareness

- spiritual poverty
- spiritual blindness and lameness

The only thing that demons fear or that will prevent re invasion of a life is when the life is filled and overflowing with godly things, then you are free from demonic invasion and attack.

Dangers of emptiness

- demonic attack and invasion
- demonic oppression
- unexplainable sickness
- constant spiritual harassment
- spiritual death
- spiritual blindness
- lack of d discernment
- constant physical and spiritual confusion
- spiritual dryness
- satanic control of the life
- suicidal thoughts

and many more

Things needed to fill your life daily or things needed to end your emptiness

- praise and worship
- reading the word of God
- testimonies
- prayers
- doing good always
- meditating on holy and heavenly things
- praying for holy ghost infilling

Prayer

- 1. O Lord my father fill me afresh with holy ghost and fire in the name of Jesus
- 2. Father Lord plant your word in me daily in the name of Jesus
- 3. My life shall bear the fruit of the spirit and not manifest the works of the flesh in the name of Jesus
- 4. Jesus Christ rescue me from spiritual blindness and laziness in the name of Jesus
- 5. O Lord wake me up by fire from spiritual slumber in the name of Jesus

- 6. Anything in me that is draining my anointing be wasted by fire in the name of Jesus
- 7. O Lord my father put your angels around me to prevent demonic invasion and attack in the name of Jesus
- 8. Powers planning to reinvade my life die suddenly in the name of Jesus
- 9. Lord end my spiritual emptiness in the name of Jesus
- 10. Father Lord I surrender all to you take absolute control of my life forever in the name of Jesus

Lord! Make me visible

Genesis 1:1-4,31 KJV

In the beginning God created the heaven and the earth. [2] And the earth was without form, and void; and darkness was upon the face of the deep. And the Spirit of God moved upon the face of the waters. [3] And God said, Let there be light: and there was light. [4] And God saw the light, that it was good: and God divided the light from the darkness. [31] And God saw every thing that he had made, and, behold, it was very good. And the evening and the morning were the sixth day.

God could not start beautifying the earth after creation, until when light was created. The created light made God to see the greatness and the beauty of the heaven, earth, night and day. Also in Genesis 1:31 KJV And God saw every thing that he had made, and, behold, it was very good. And the evening and the morning were the sixth day. God was able to see the beauty of what he created.

Beloved, no matter how great you are,
No matter your anointing
No matter how skilful you are
No matter how educated you are

No matter how beautiful you are

No matter how powerful you are,

If you are seated in darkness no man I say no man will discover you.

For you to be discovered in life,

For your business to be profitable and flourishing

For your skills and talents to be seen

For your beauty to be seen and appreciated

You must be seen by people and the only this could happen is for the light of God to shine upon you, I want you to cry loud to God with a voice like thunder, say O God my father shine your light upon me daily in the name of Jesus

Failing to be seen will result in

- profitless hard labour
- wasted investment
- loss of vision and focus in life
- frustration
- stagnation
- sorrow
- ageing before time
- noise with no respect

There are people out there that are in need of your beauty to marry, your products to buy and your talents to benefits from.

Prayer

- 1. My father command your light to come into my life in the name of Jesus
- 2. Darkness that is all around me preventing my helpers from seeing me light of God disgrace it in the name of Jesus
- 3. Satanic siege of darkness I end your reign in my life by fire in the name of Jesus
- 4. My business, qualifications, talents etc receive the light of God from above in the name of Jesus
- 5. Any power that is pressing my head down in darkness release me and die in the name of Jesus.

What the enemies wants by force

1 Kings 21:1-15 KJV

And it came to pass after these things, that Naboth the Jezreelite had a vineyard, which was in Jezreel, hard by the palace of Ahab king of Samaria. [2] And Ahab spake unto Naboth, saying, Give me thy vineyard, that I may have it for a garden of herbs, because it is near unto my house: and I will give thee for it a better vineyard than it; or, if it seem good to thee, I will give thee the worth of it in money. [3] And Naboth said to Ahab, The Lord forbid it me, that I should give the inheritance of my fathers unto thee. [4] And Ahab came into his house heavy and displeased because of the word which Naboth the Jezreelite had spoken to him: for he had said, I will not give thee the inheritance of my fathers. And he laid him down upon his bed, and turned away his face, and would eat no bread. [5] But Jezebel his wife came to him, and said unto him, Why is thy spirit so sad, that thou eatest no bread? [6] And he said unto her, Because I spake unto Naboth the Jezreelite, and said unto him, Give me thy vineyard for money; or else, if it please thee, I will give thee another vineyard for it: and he answered, I will not give thee my vineyard. [7] And Jezebel his wife said unto him, Dost thou now govern the kingdom of Israel? arise, and eat bread, and let thine heart be merry: I will give thee the vineyard of Naboth the Jezreelite. [8] So she wrote

letters in Ahab's name, and sealed them with his seal, and sent the letters unto the elders and to the nobles that were in his city, dwelling with Naboth. [9] And she wrote in the letters, saying, Proclaim a fast, and set Naboth on high among the people: [10] And set two men, sons of Belial, before him, to bear witness against him, saying, Thou didst blaspheme God and the king. And then carry him out, and stone him, that he may die. [11] And the men of his city, even the elders and the nobles who were the inhabitants in his city, did as Jezebel had sent unto them, and as it was written in the letters which she had sent unto them. [12] They proclaimed a fast, and set Naboth on high among the people. [13] And there came in two men, children of Belial, and sat before him: and the men of Belial witnessed against him, even against Naboth, in the presence of the people, saying, Naboth did blaspheme God and the king. Then they carried him forth out of the city, and stoned him with stones, that he died. [14] Then they sent to Jezebel, saying, Naboth is stoned, and is dead. [15] And it came to pass, when Jezebel heard that Naboth was stoned, and was dead, that Jezebel said to Ahab, Arise, take possession of the vineyard of Naboth the Jezreelite, which he refused to give thee for money: for Naboth is not alive, but dead.

The enemy wanted Naboth's vineyard and when he refused he was killed. Do you know how many people are desiring your

- marriage

- career
- business
- property
- anointing
- glory and destiny
- ideas

and if they can't get it easily, they can kill the owner just to have their way.

Prayer

- 1. Any power that wants you dead because of your destiny shall be wasted by fire in the name of Jesus
- 2. Those hired to lie against you so that you can be killed shall fail woefully in the name of Jesus
- 3. You will not lose your life because of your properties in the name of Jesus

Lord increase my faith

Luke 17:5 KJV

And the apostles said unto the Lord, Increase our faith.

Hebrews 11:1-20 KJV

Now faith is the substance of things hoped for, the evidence of things not seen. [2] For by it the elders obtained a good report. [3] Through faith we understand that the worlds were framed by the word of God, so that things which are seen were not made of things which do appear. [4] By faith Abel offered unto God a more excellent sacrifice than Cain, by which he obtained witness that he was righteous, God testifying of his gifts: and by it he being dead yet speaketh. [5] By faith Enoch was translated that he should not see death; and was not found, because God had translated him: for before his translation he had this testimony, that he pleased God. [6] But without faith it is impossible to please him: for he that cometh to God must believe that he is, and that he is a rewarder of them that diligently seek him. [7] By faith Noah, being warned of God of things not seen as yet, moved with fear, prepared an ark to the saving of his house; by the which he condemned the world, and became heir of the righteousness which is by faith. [8] By faith Abraham, when he was called to go out into a place which he should

after receive for an inheritance, obeyed; and he went out, not knowing whither he went. [9] By faith he sojourned in the land of promise, as in a strange country, dwelling in tabernacles with Isaac and Jacob, the heirs with him of the same promise: [10] For he looked for a city which hath foundations, whose builder and maker is God. [11] Through faith also Sara herself received strength to conceive seed, and was delivered of a child when she was past age, because she judged him faithful who had promised. [12] Therefore sprang there even of one, and him as good as dead, so many as the stars of the sky in multitude, and as the sand which is by the sea shore innumerable. [13] These all died in faith, not having received the promises, but having seen them afar off, and were persuaded of them, and embraced them, and confessed that they were strangers and pilgrims on the earth. [14] For they that say such things declare plainly that they seek a country. [15] And truly, if they had been mindful of that country from whence they came out, they might have had opportunity to have returned. [16] But now they desire a better country, that is, an heavenly: wherefore God is not ashamed to be called their God: for he hath prepared for them a city. [17] By faith Abraham, when he was tried, offered up Isaac: and he that had received the promises offered up his only begotten son, [18] Of whom it was said, That in Isaac shall thy seed be called: [19] Accounting that God was able to raise him up, even from the dead; from whence also he received him in a figure. [20] By faith Isaac blessed Jacob and Esau concerning things to come.

Prayer

Lord increase my faith in the name of Jesus

Anything in me that will destroy my faith die in Jesus name

I receive the grace and power to operate in faith in the name of Jesus

Congratulations to you all on the 2nd year anniversary of Reality Daily Prayer, our prayer is that the Lord Almighty will move you all to higher level greater than your imagination in the name of Jesus.

As part of the global vision of the platform, we are moving to the next phase comprising of the following video recordings every

- Tuesday " Prayer for the church"
- Wednesday " Prayer for the family "
- Thursday " Healing clinic"
- Friday " Deliverance Hour" commencing from the 1st of October. Please endeavour to stay tuned, join, share, invite others and God will use this medium to populate his kingdom and depopulate the kingdom of darkness in the name of Jesus.

Prayer

1. Psalm 1:3 KJV

And YOU shall be like a tree planted by the rivers of water, that bringeth forth his fruit in his season; his leaf also shall not wither; and whatsoever he doeth shall prosper.

2. Jeremiah 30:16 KJV

Therefore all they that devour thee shall be devoured; and all thine adversaries, every one of them, shall go into captivity; and they that spoil thee shall be a spoil, and all that prey upon thee will I give for a prey.

3. Joshua 1:3 KJV

Every place that the sole of your foot shall tread upon, that have I given unto you, as I said unto Moses.

4. Joshua 1:5 KJV

There shall not any man be able to stand before thee all the days of thy life: as I was with Moses, so I will be with thee: I will not fail thee, nor forsake thee.

5. Jeremiah 1:19 KJV

And they shall fight against thee; but they shall not prevail against thee; for I am with thee, saith the Lord, to deliver thee.

In Jesus mighty name we have prayed and decreed. Amen

Chosen by God used by Satan

Matthew 22:14 KJV

For many are called, but few are chosen.

Luke 22:1-6 KJV

Now the feast of unleavened bread drew nigh, which is called the Passover. [2] And the chief priests and scribes sought how they might kill him; for they feared the people. [3] Then entered Satan into Judas surnamed Iscariot, being of the number of the twelve. [4] And he went his way, and communed with the chief priests and captains, how he might betray him unto them. [5] And they were glad, and covenanted to give him money. [6] And he promised, and sought opportunity to betray him unto them in the absence of the multitude.

Strangely in this wicked world we are seeing the chosen and the elect now been used against the one who called them. Judas Iscariot was chosen by God but ended up been an instrument in the hands of the enemies and his end was disastrous as seen in Matthew 27:1-5 KJV When the morning was come, all the chief priests and elders of the people took counsel against Jesus to put him to death: [2] And when they had bound him, they led him away, and delivered him to Pontius

Pilate the governor. [3] Then Judas, which had betrayed him, when he saw that he was condemned, repented himself, and brought again the thirty pieces of silver to the chief priests and elders, [4] Saying, I have sinned in that I have betrayed the innocent blood. And they said, What is that to us? see thou to that . [5] And he cast down the pieces of silver in the temple, and departed, and went and hanged himself.

Aaron and Miriam opposing Moses the chosen of God is another example in Numbers 12:1-10 KJV

And Miriam and Aaron spake against Moses because of the Ethiopian woman whom he had married: for he had married an Ethiopian woman. [2] And they said, Hath the Lord indeed spoken only by Moses? hath he not spoken also by us? And the Lord heard it . [3] (Now the man Moses was very meek, above all the men which were upon the face of the earth.) [4] And the Lord spake suddenly unto Moses, and unto Aaron, and unto Miriam, Come out ye three unto the tabernacle of the congregation. And they three came out. [5] And the Lord came down in the pillar of the cloud, and stood in the door of the tabernacle, and called Aaron and Miriam: and they both came forth. [6] And he said, Hear now my words: If there be a prophet among you, I the Lord will make myself known unto him in a vision, and will speak unto him in a dream. [7] My servant Moses is not so, who is faithful in all mine house. [8] With him will I speak mouth to mouth, even apparently, and not in dark speeches;

and the similitude of the Lord shall he behold: wherefore then were ye not afraid to speak against my servant Moses? [9] And the anger of the Lord was kindled against them; and he departed. [10] And the cloud departed from off the tabernacle; and, behold, Miriam became leprous, white as snow: and Aaron looked upon Miriam, and, behold, she was leprous.

What are the ways by which the chosen can be used by Satan.

- Blasphemy against God
- Speaking evil of the church and the leaders
- Church politics
- Love of money
- lust for power and social class
- Wrong association
- Fake salvation
- insincerity of mind

and many more

Consequences of been used by Satan

- enemy of God
- loss of holy spirit

- loss of peace of mind
- sickness
- death

Prayer

- 1. Father Lord help me to remain faithful in my calling in the name of Jesus
- 2. Lord if I'm walking on the pathway of destruction rescue me by your mighty hand in the name of Jesus
- 3. O Lord my father shield me from the company of evil doers and those that hates Christ in the name of Jesus
- 4. O Lord my father help me to remain focus in my ministry and circular life in the name of Jesus
- 5. O Lord my father help me not to lose my anointing and power in the name of Jesus

Value with fire

Malachi 3:2-3 KJV

But who may abide the day of his coming? and who shall stand when he appeareth? for he is like a refiner's fire, and like fullers' soap: [3] And he shall sit as a refiner and purifier of silver: and he shall purify the sons of Levi, and purge them as gold and silver, that they may offer unto the Lord an offering in righteousness.

2 Timothy 2:19-21 KJV

Nevertheless the foundation of God standeth sure, having this seal, The Lord knoweth them that are his. And, Let every one that nameth the name of Christ depart from iniquity. [20] But in a great house there are not only vessels of gold and of silver, but also of wood and of earth; and some to honour, and some to dishonour. [21] If a man therefore purge himself from these, he shall be a vessel unto honour, sanctified, and meet for the master's use, and prepared unto every good work.

Gold in its original form is rough and full of impurities but when passed through fire it becomes precious metal with great value.

Impurities when found in you will reduce your value to nothing and at times makes you unfit for use. Sin is the impurities that reduces a life to nothing and word of God through the power of God ALMIGHTY is the fire that gives value to a life and makes you a vessel of great honour and value.

When you are purged with fire:

- you become a friend of God
- useful in the hand of God
- Be powerful to stand and defeat the enemies
- you will be preserved from all evil and be kept in secret place of God and enjoy all the blessings in

Psalm 91:1-16 KJV

He that dwelleth in the secret place of the most High shall abide under the shadow of the Almighty. [2] I will say of the Lord , He is my refuge and my fortress: my God; in him will I trust. [3] Surely he shall deliver thee from the snare of the fowler, and from the noisome pestilence. [4] He shall cover thee with his feathers, and under his wings shalt thou trust: his truth shall be thy shield and buckler. [5] Thou shalt not be afraid for the terror by night; nor for the arrow that flieth by day; [6] Nor for the pestilence that walketh in darkness; nor for the destruction that wasteth at noonday. [7] A thousand shall fall at thy side, and ten thousand at thy right hand; but it shall not come nigh thee. [8] Only with thine eyes shalt thou behold and see the reward of the wicked. [9] Because thou hast made the Lord , which is my refuge, even the most High, thy habitation;

[10] There shall no evil befall thee, neither shall any plague come nigh thy dwelling. [11] For he shall give his angels charge over thee, to keep thee in all thy ways. [12] They shall bear thee up in their hands, lest thou dash thy foot against a stone. [13] Thou shalt tread upon the lion and adder: the young lion and the dragon shalt thou trample under feet. [14] Because he hath set his love upon me, therefore will I deliver him: I will set him on high, because he hath known my name. [15] He shall call upon me, and I will answer him: I will be with him in trouble; I will deliver him, and honour him. [16] With long life will I satisfy him, and shew him my salvation.

Prayer

- 1. Father Lord purge me with your fire and make me a vessel of honour in the name of Jesus
- 2. Impurities that will reduce me to nothing be consume by fire in the name of Jesus
- 3. Lord make me valuable in your hands in the name of Jesus
- 4. My life hear the word of the lord you shall not be useless in the house of God in the name of Jesus

5. Jesus Christ connect me with the socket of holiness and righteousness in the name of Jesus

Something must happen

Matthew 11:28-30 KJV

Come unto me, all ye that labour and are heavy laden, and I will give you rest. [29] Take my yoke upon you, and learn of me; for I am meek and lowly in heart: and ye shall find rest unto your souls. [30] For my yoke is easy, and my burden is light.

Mark 5:25-34 KJV

And a certain woman, which had an issue of blood twelve years, [26] And had suffered many things of many physicians, and had spent all that she had, and was nothing bettered, but rather grew worse, [27] When she had heard of Jesus, came in the press behind, and touched his garment. [28] For she said, If I may touch but his clothes, I shall be whole. [29] And straightway the fountain of her blood was dried up; and she felt in her body that she was healed of that plague. [30] And Jesus, immediately knowing in himself that virtue had gone out of him, turned him about in the press, and said, Who touched my clothes? [31] And his disciples said unto him, Thou seest the multitude thronging thee, and sayest thou, Who touched me? [32] And he looked round about to see her that had done this thing. [33] But the woman fearing and trembling, knowing what was done in her, came and fell down before him, and told

him all the truth. [34] And he said unto her, Daughter, thy faith hath made thee whole; go in peace, and be whole of thy plague.

John 11:32-44 KJV

Then when Mary was come where Jesus was, and saw him, she fell down at his feet, saying unto him, Lord, if thou hadst been here, my brother had not died. [33] When Jesus therefore saw her weeping, and the Jews also weeping which came with her, he groaned in the spirit, and was troubled, [34] And said, Where have ye laid him? They said unto him, Lord, come and see. [35] Jesus wept. [36] Then said the Jews, Behold how he loved him! [37] And some of them said, Could not this man, which opened the eyes of the blind, have caused that even this man should not have died? [38] Jesus therefore again groaning in himself cometh to the grave. It was a cave, and a stone lay upon it. [39] Jesus said, Take ye away the stone. Martha, the sister of him that was dead, saith unto him, Lord, by this time he stinketh: for he hath been dead four days. [40] Jesus saith unto her, Said I not unto thee, that, if thou wouldest believe, thou shouldest see the glory of God? [41] Then they took away the stone from the place where the dead was laid. And Jesus lifted up his eyes, and said, Father, I thank thee that thou hast heard me. [42] And I knew that thou hearest me always: but because of the people which stand by I said it, that they may believe that thou hast sent me. [43] And when he thus had spoken, he cried with a loud voice,

Lazarus, come forth. [44] And he that was dead came forth, bound hand and foot with graveclothes: and his face was bound about with a napkin. Jesus saith unto them, Loose him, and let him go.

Beloved it is high time we stop playing with our lives by practising fake Christianity I mean Christianity of eye service.

If you are truly in the presence of Jesus I mean when you come to him or he comes to you SOMETHING MUST HAPPENED

The woman with the issue of blood came to him and got her instant healing and miracle. Jesus came to the tomb of Lazarus and the dead was raised.

It doesn't matter how many times you come to him, something must surely happen.

Things that will happen through Jesus when you come to him or he comes to you

- brokenness
- genuine repentance
- healing
- peace of mind
- solution to problems
- dead will rise

- lame will walk
- blind will see
- prisons opens
- chains are broken
- darkness disappears
- recovery of glory and wasted years
- inner joy
- victory over the kingdom of darkness
- open heaven
- answered prayers

and many more

The reason why things are no longer happening in churches and among believers is because of

- distraction in church
- prayerlessness
- worldliness
- hidden sin
- lack of faith
- trusting in man rather than trusting God
- politics in church
- not meditating on the word of God

And many more

For something to happen we

- must repent and forsake all sins
- be a bible addict
- have personal relationship with God
- always be focussed when serving God
- have die hard faith
- pray without ceasing

Prayer

- 1. Miracle worker I thank you for you are not a liar but a covenant keeper accept my thanks for you will answer always in the name of Jesus
- 2. Father Lord by the blood of your son Jesus Christ by faith pardon my iniquity and make me whole again in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord by the power in your name plant faith like the mustard seed in my life in the name of Jesus
- O Lord my father replace my sorrow with joy
 My pains with laughter
 My darkness with light

My poverty with riches

My stagnancy with promotion

My challenges with testimonies

My bareness with fruitfulness

My desert with fertile land

My bondage with freedom in the name of Jesus

5. Jesus Christ of Nazareth advertise yourself in my by doing what eyes have not seen , what ears have not heard and what that has never been laid in the heart of men in the name of Jesus

Double portion

John 14:12 KJV

Verily, verily, I say unto you, He that believeth on me, the works that I do shall he do also; and greater works than these shall he do; because I go unto my Father.

2 Kings 2:9-15 KJV

And it came to pass, when they were gone over, that Elijah said unto Elisha, Ask what I shall do for thee, before I be taken away from thee. And Elisha said, I pray thee, let a double portion of thy spirit be upon me. [10] And he said, Thou hast asked a hard thing: nevertheless, if thou see me when I am taken from thee, it shall be so unto thee; but if not, it shall not be so . [11] And it came to pass, as they still went on, and talked, that, behold, there appeared a chariot of fire, and horses of fire, and parted them both asunder; and Elijah went up by a whirlwind into heaven. [12] And Elisha saw it, and he cried, My father, my father, the chariot of Israel, and the horsemen thereof. And he saw him no more: and he took hold of his own clothes, and rent them in two pieces. [13] He took up also the mantle of Elijah that fell from him, and went back, and stood by the bank of Jordan; [14] And he took the mantle of Elijah that fell from him, and smote the waters, and said, Where is the Lord

God of Elijah? and when he also had smitten the waters, they parted hither and thither: and Elisha went over. [15] And when the sons of the prophets which were to view at Jericho saw him, they said, The spirit of Elijah doth rest on Elisha. And they came to meet him, and bowed themselves to the ground before him.

Jesus Christ our saviour gave a wonderful promise that if we believe that we s h all do what he did even greater works shall we do also Elisha received double portion of the anointing of Elijah

Double portion will position you to be greater than your master
It will announce you to the world
It is a sign of increase
It is a sign of supremacy over the power of the enemies
It's a sign of power

Prayer

- 1. May you receive double portion of anointing of the apostles in the name of Jesus
- 2. Because you believe in Jesus, you shall do greater works than he did in the name of Jesus

- 3. God will announce his power in your generation through you in the name of Jesus.
- 4. As the Apostles took Christianity to the whole world, may the power of God in your life make Christianity to spread more with signs and wonders in the name of Jesus.
- 5. Your anointing shall not run dry in the name of Jesus

Surely enchantment shall not prosper against me

Numbers 23:23 KJV

Surely there is no enchantment against Jacob, neither is there any divination against Israel: according to this time it shall be said of Jacob and of Israel, What hath God wrought!

The scripture means;

When the lord is on your side who can be against you? When the lord is with you your enemies are in trouble, when the lord is leading you, your problems will go into exile and when the lord is fighting for you, your enemies shall be utterly destroyed, when you are under the shadow of the almighty, enchantment, divination, curses, spells and the weapons of your enemies are rendered powerless.

The wicked are charming colourful destinies, marriages, careers and many more good things through the use of enchantment, witchcraft, divination, issuing curses and even casting spells.

No matter your problems, God is the only solution, call on his name through constant prayer and start enjoying unlimited freedom and deliverance

Prayer

- 1. I decree by the power in the name of Jesus that those troubling you and your family with witchcraft shall die today in the name of Jesus
- 2. By the authority in the name of Jesus receive your deliverance from satanic yolk of profitless hard labour in the name of Jesus
- 3. From this day on I called heaven and earth to witness this that whosoever shall report you to any coven within 24 hours shall die in the name of Jesus
- 4. May the mouth of your enemies begins to bless you and your home in the name of Jesus.
- 5. (Confess this scripture 7 times with your name) Numbers 23:23 KJV Surely there is no enchantment against Jacob, neither is there any divination against Israel: according to this time it shall be said of Jacob and of Israel, What hath God wrought!

Knowing your God

Daniel 11:32 KJV

And such as do wickedly against the covenant shall he corrupt by flatteries: but the people that do know their God shall be strong, and do exploits.

The opposite of the scripture above is that the people that do not know their God shall be weak and do no exploits.

I'm praying for you that in your generation, may you do exploits in the name of Jesus.

Receive the power to shame the kingdom of darkness in the name of Jesus

In the bible Elijah did great exploits and destroyed the altar and the prophets of Baal as seen 1 Kings 18:30-40 KJV

And Elijah said unto all the people, Come near unto me. And all the people came near unto him. And he repaired the altar of the Lord that was broken down. [31] And Elijah took twelve stones, according to the number of the tribes of the sons of Jacob, unto whom the word of the Lord came, saying, Israel shall be thy name: [32] And with the stones he

built an altar in the name of the Lord; and he made a trench about the altar, as great as would contain two measures of seed. [33] And he put the wood in order, and cut the bullock in pieces, and laid him on the wood, and said, Fill four barrels with water, and pour it on the burnt sacrifice, and on the wood. [34] And he said. Do it the second time. And they did it the second time. And he said, Do it the third time. And they did it the third time. [35] And the water ran round about the altar; and he filled the trench also with water. [36] And it came to pass at the time of the offering of the evening sacrifice, that Elijah the prophet came near, and said, Lord God of Abraham, Isaac, and of Israel, let it be known this day that thou art God in Israel, and that I am thy servant, and that I have done all these things at thy word. [37] Hear me, O Lord, hear me, that this people may know that thou art the Lord God, and that thou hast turned their heart back again. [38] Then the fire of the Lord fell, and consumed the burnt sacrifice, and the wood, and the stones, and the dust, and licked up the water that was in the trench. [39] And when all the people saw it, they fell on their faces: and they said, The Lord, he is the God; the Lord, he is the God. [40] And Elijah said unto them, Take the prophets of Baal; let not one of them escape. And they took them: and Elijah brought them down to the brook Kishon, and slew them there.

Likewise God expects us to do greater works as instructed by Jesus Christ in John 14:12 KJV

Verily, verily, I say unto you, He that believeth on me, the works that I do shall he do also; and greater works than these shall he do; because I go unto my Father.

In the name of Jesus receive the power to do greater works in the name of Jesus

- *Knowing God means;*
- Making Jesus your Lord and personal saviour
- Recognising him as the true God and that he and the father are one John 14:7 KJV

If ye had known me, ye should have known my Father also: and from henceforth ye know him, and have seen him.

John 10:30 KJV

I and my Father are one.

- Believe that Jesus is the only way to heaven

John 14:6 KJV

Jesus saith unto him, I am the way, the truth, and the life: no man cometh unto the Father, but by me.

- Believe in the bible

Ways of knowing God

Through

- Scriptural reading and meditation
- prayer
- praise and worship
- loving others like yourself
- Helping the needy
- *Benefits of knowing God*
- You will be receiving first hand divine information
- Demons, principalities and powers will bow at your feet
- You will be bold and courageous like a lion
- You will pull down strongholds
- God will always steps into your battle
- You will not be afraid of evil or darkness
- You will always say of the lord Psalm 91:2-13 KJV He is my refuge and my fortress: my God; in him will I trust. [3] Surely he shall deliver thee from the snare of the fowler, and from the noisome pestilence. [4] He shall cover thee with his feathers, and under his wings shalt thou trust: his truth shall be thy shield and buckler. [5] Thou shalt not be afraid

for the terror by night; nor for the arrow that flieth by day; [6] Nor for the pestilence that walketh in darkness; nor for the destruction that wasteth at noonday. [7] A thousand shall fall at thy side, and ten thousand at thy right hand; but it shall not come nigh thee. [8] Only with thine eyes shalt thou behold and see the reward of the wicked. [9] Because thou hast made the Lord, which is my refuge, even the most High, thy habitation; [10] There shall no evil befall thee, neither shall any plague come nigh thy dwelling. [11] For he shall give his angels charge over thee, to keep thee in all thy ways. [12] They shall bear thee up in their hands, lest thou dash thy foot against a stone. [13] Thou shalt tread upon the lion and adder: the young lion and the dragon shalt thou trample under feet.

Prayer

- 1. Father Lord draw me closer if I'm far away from you in the name of Jesus
- 2. Lord Jesus reveal more of yourself to me daily in the name of Jesus
- 3. Anything in me that hates the bible and the church must die in the name of Jesus
- 4. Father Lord plant the tree of righteousness and holiness in me in the name of Jesus

- 5. I receive fresh anointing to do great exploits in the name of Jesus
- 6. I receive the power to confront and defeat Goliath in the name of Jesus
- 7. Any power standing on my way of awesome testimonies die in the name of Jesus
- 8. Any power draining the oil in my lamp be roasted by fire in the name of Jesus
- 9. O Lord my father seal up all demonic leakages in my life in the name of Jesus
- 10. I overcome my fear and receive boldness and sound mind in the name of Jesus

Angelic visitation

Luke 1:5-44 KJV

There was in the days of Herod, the king of Judaea, a certain priest named Zacharias, of the course of Abia: and his wife was of the daughters of Aaron, and her name was Elisabeth. [6] And they were both righteous before God, walking in all the commandments and ordinances of the Lord blameless. [7] And they had no child, because that Elisabeth was barren, and they both were now well stricken in years. [8] And it came to pass, that while he executed the priest's office before God in the order of his course, [9] According to the custom of the priest's office, his lot was to burn incense when he went into the temple of the Lord. [10] And the whole multitude of the people were praying without at the time of incense. [11] And there appeared unto him an angel of the Lord standing on the right side of the altar of incense. [12] And when Zacharias saw him, he was troubled, and fear fell upon him. [13] But the angel said unto him, Fear not, Zacharias: for thy prayer is heard; and thy wife Elisabeth shall bear thee a son, and thou shalt call his name John. [14] And thou shalt have joy and gladness; and many shall rejoice at his birth. [15] For he shall be great in the sight of the Lord, and shall drink neither wine nor strong drink; and he shall be filled with the Holy Ghost, even from his mother's womb. [16] And many of the children of Israel

shall he turn to the Lord their God. [17] And he shall go before him in the spirit and power of Elias, to turn the hearts of the fathers to the children, and the disobedient to the wisdom of the just; to make ready a people prepared for the Lord. [18] And Zacharias said unto the angel, Whereby shall I know this? for I am an old man, and my wife well stricken in years. [19] And the angel answering said unto him, I am Gabriel, that stand in the presence of God; and am sent to speak unto thee, and to shew thee these glad tidings. [20] And, behold, thou shalt be dumb, and not able to speak, until the day that these things shall be performed, because thou believest not my words, which shall be fulfilled in their season. [21] And the people waited for Zacharias, and marvelled that he tarried so long in the temple. [22] And when he came out, he could not speak unto them: and they perceived that he had seen a vision in the temple: for he beckoned unto them, and remained speechless. [23] And it came to pass, that, as soon as the days of his ministration were accomplished, he departed to his own house. [24] And after those days his wife Elisabeth conceived, and hid herself five months, saying, [25] Thus hath the Lord dealt with me in the days wherein he looked on me, to take away my reproach among men. [26] And in the sixth month the angel Gabriel was sent from God unto a city of Galilee, named Nazareth, [27] To a virgin espoused to a man whose name was Joseph, of the house of David; and the virgin's name was Mary. [28] And the angel came in unto her, and said, Hail, thou that art highly favoured, the Lord is with

thee: blessed art thou among women. [29] And when she saw him, she was troubled at his saying, and cast in her mind what manner of salutation this should be. [30] And the angel said unto her, Fear not, Mary: for thou hast found favour with God. [31] And, behold, thou shalt conceive in thy womb, and bring forth a son, and shalt call his name JESUS. [32] He shall be great, and shall be called the Son of the Highest: and the Lord God shall give unto him the throne of his father David: [33] And he shall reign over the house of Jacob for ever; and of his kingdom there shall be no end. [34] Then said Mary unto the angel, How shall this be, seeing I know not a man? [35] And the angel answered and said unto her, The Holy Ghost shall come upon thee, and the power of the Highest shall overshadow thee: therefore also that holy thing which shall be born of thee shall be called the Son of God. [36] And, behold, thy cousin Elisabeth, she hath also conceived a son in her old age: and this is the sixth month with her, who was called barren. [37] For with God nothing shall be impossible. [38] And Mary said, Behold the handmaid of the Lord; be it unto me according to thy word. And the angel departed from her. [39] And Mary arose in those days, and went into the hill country with haste, into a city of Juda; [40] And entered into the house of Zacharias, and saluted Elisabeth. [41] And it came to pass, that, when Elisabeth heard the salutation of Mary, the babe leaped in her womb; and Elisabeth was filled with the Holy Ghost: [42] And she spake out with a loud voice, and said, Blessed art thou among women, and blessed is the fruit of thy womb. [43] And whence is this to me, that the mother of my Lord should come to me? [44] For, lo, as soon as the voice of thy salutation sounded in mine ears, the babe leaped in my womb for joy.

Zacharias and Mary had angelic visitation and their lives changed forever. Depending on how important the message is, God do send his angels.

When there is angelic visitation

- the messages are real and directly from God to man
- the messages are sure and must surely come to pass
- it shows how God loves the person

Prayer

- 1. As Mary had divine visitation, may you encounter such in the name of Jesus
- 2. In this new day you will receive good news in the name of Jesus
- 3. Your angel of blessing and good news will locate you today in the name of Jesus

- 4. You will be at the right place and at the right time to meet your heavenly messenger of good news in the name of Jesus
- 5. Your angel of blessing shall not be arrested by the Prince of Persia in the name of Jesus
- 6. Your ears shall hear good news and your eyes see good things today and forever in the name of Jesus
- 7. Those plotting to destroy your joy shall be sad forever in the name of Jesus
- 8. God in heaven will connect you to the fountain and tap of good news in the name of Jesus
- 9. Your good news will not become bad news in the name of Jesus
- 10. Your pregnancy of good news and testimonies shall not be aborted in the name of Jesus.

Their plans must surely fail

In the scripture below, we saw how the Almighty God caused the plans to waste Daniel to fail and made his enemies to die in place of him.

Daniel 6:4-24 KJV

Then the presidents and princes sought to find occasion against Daniel concerning the kingdom; but they could find none occasion nor fault; forasmuch as he was faithful, neither was there any error or fault found in him. [5] Then said these men, We shall not find any occasion against this Daniel, except we find it against him concerning the law of his God. [6] Then these presidents and princes assembled together to the king, and said thus unto him, King Darius, live for ever. [7] All the presidents of the kingdom, the governors, and the princes, the counsellors, and the captains, have consulted together to establish a royal statute, and to make a firm decree, that whosoever shall ask a petition of any God or man for thirty days, save of thee, O king, he shall be cast into the den of lions. [8] Now, O king, establish the decree, and sign the writing, that it be not changed, according to the law of the Medes and Persians, which altereth not. [9] Wherefore king Darius signed the writing and the decree. [10] Now when Daniel knew that the writing was signed, he went into his house; and his windows being open in his chamber toward Jerusalem,

he kneeled upon his knees three times a day, and prayed, and gave thanks before his God, as he did aforetime. [11] Then these men assembled, and found Daniel praying and making supplication before his God. [12] Then they came near, and spake before the king concerning the king's decree; Hast thou not signed a decree, that every man that shall ask a petition of any God or man within thirty days, save of thee, O king, shall be cast into the den of lions? The king answered and said, The thing is true, according to the law of the Medes and Persians, which altereth not. [13] Then answered they and said before the king, That Daniel, which is of the children of the captivity of Judah, regardeth not thee, O king, nor the decree that thou hast signed, but maketh his petition three times a day. [14] Then the king, when he heard these words, was sore displeased with himself, and set his heart on Daniel to deliver him: and he laboured till the going down of the sun to deliver him. [15] Then these men assembled unto the king, and said unto the king, Know, O king, that the law of the Medes and Persians is, That no decree nor statute which the king establisheth may be changed. [16] Then the king commanded, and they brought Daniel, and cast him into the den of lions. Now the king spake and said unto Daniel, Thy God whom thou servest continually, he will deliver thee. [17] And a stone was brought, and laid upon the mouth of the den; and the king sealed it with his own signet, and with the signet of his lords; that the purpose might not be changed concerning Daniel. [18] Then the king went to his palace.

and passed the night fasting: neither were instruments of musick brought before him: and his sleep went from him. [19] Then the king arose very early in the morning, and went in haste unto the den of lions. [20] And when he came to the den, he cried with a lamentable voice unto Daniel: and the king spake and said to Daniel, O Daniel, servant of the living God, is thy God, whom thou servest continually, able to deliver thee from the lions? [21] Then said Daniel unto the king, O king, live for ever. [22] My God hath sent his angel, and hath shut the lions' mouths, that they have not hurt me: forasmuch as before him innocency was found in me; and also before thee, O king, have I done no hurt. [23] Then was the king exceeding glad for him, and commanded that they should take Daniel up out of the den. So Daniel was taken up out of the den, and no manner of hurt was found upon him, because he believed in his God. [24] And the king commanded, and they brought those men which had accused Daniel, and they cast them into the den of lions, them, their children, and their wives; and the lions had the mastery of them, and brake all their bones in pieces or ever they came at the bottom of the den.

When their plans failed, it means

- their plans are wasted
- their plans are disappointed and disgraced
- their missions are aborted and ended in nothing

- to see your enemies covered with shame
- to have your enemies failing and falling before your face.
- witnessing your enemies been used up without any achievements
- causing your enemies to fail and fall into their own plans
- witnessing the death of your enemies in pains and agony.

Surely as the Lord God of heaven, the creator of heaven and earth liveth before whom I stand:

- your enemies shall die a grievous and painful death in the name of Jesus
- Plans to cause you pains shall surely fail in the name of Jesus
- Plans to bring shame and disgrace upon your life must surely fail In the name of Jesus
- Plans to kill your children and drink their blood will surely fail in the name of Jesus
- Plans to waste your resources and destiny must surely be disappointed in the name of Jesus

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

- Plans to poison you and your children shall not prosper in the name of Jesus
- Plans to bewitch your destiny and those of your children shall surely fail in the name of Jesus
- plans to make you beg for bread will not prosper against you in the name of Jesus
- plans to make you live your days in sickness and infirmities shall surely fail woefully in the name of Jesus

Praver

- 1.The Lord will cause your enemies to fail woefully over your case and those of your children in the name of Jesus
- 2. Plans to kill you or any member of your family this year shall surely fail in the name of Jesus
- 3. Anywhere your enemies are gathering against you this day shall catch fire in the name of Jesus

- 4. I curse the plans to hijack the eagle of your life and your shining star to fail woefully in the name of Jesus
- 5. Those embarking on demonic missions because of you or your children shall die on the way in the name of Jesus
- 6. Arrows fired into your head, brain, liver, kidney, blood or any part of your body come out with all your roots and backfire in the name of Jesus
- 7. Those waiting to celebrate your obituary shall become obituary themselves in the name of Jesus
- 8. In the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth, you and your family will not end up as meat on the table of your enemies in the name of Jesus
- 9. Your enemies, I say your enemies from this day on they shall eat their own flesh and drink their own blood in the name of Jesus
- 10. The Lord that delivered Daniel from the mouth of the lions shall deliver you and your entire household from tragedy, accident and untimely death in the name of Jesus.

Why seek ye the living among the dead?

Luke 24:5 KJV

And as they were afraid, and bowed down their faces to the earth, they said unto them, Why seek ye the living among the dead?

Luke 24:39-40 KJV

Behold my hands and my feet, that it is I myself: handle me, and see; for a spirit hath not flesh and bones, as ye see me have. [40] And when he had thus spoken, he shewed them his hands and his feet.

This scripture explained the transformation that should be seen in the life of a true believer. It also explained the kind of body we would put on when converted and after resurrection.

Our bodies will be the same but in a spiritual form that can be seen.

1 Corinthians 15:40-50 KJV

There are also celestial bodies, and bodies terrestrial: but the glory of the celestial is one, and the glory of the terrestrial is another. [41] There is one glory of the sun, and another glory of the moon, and another glory of the stars: for one star differeth from another star in glory. [42] So also is the resurrection of the dead. It is sown in corruption; it is raised in

incorruption: [43] It is sown in dishonour; it is raised in glory: it is sown in weakness; it is raised in power: [44] It is sown a natural body; it is raised a spiritual body. There is a natural body, and there is a spiritual body. [45] And so it is written, The first man Adam was made a living soul; the last Adam was made a quickening spirit. [46] Howbeit that was not first which is spiritual, but that which is natural; and afterward that which is spiritual. [47] The first man is of the earth, earthy: the second man is the Lord from heaven. [48] As is the earthy, such are they also that are earthy: and as is the heavenly, such are they also that are heavenly. [49] And as we have borne the image of the earthy, we shall also bear the image of the heavenly. [50] Now this I say, brethren, that flesh and blood cannot inherit the kingdom of God; neither doth corruption inherit incorruption.

- *Lessons to learn*
- the dead are the blind and chronic sinner
- John 6:63 KJV

It is the spirit that quickeneth; the flesh profiteth nothing: the words that I speak unto you, they are spirit, and they are life.

- when you die and resurrect with Jesus you become a new creature perfect and upright
- the dead moves with the dead while the living with living, there will be association between you and those that are perishing

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

- when in the spirit you see more, hear more and know more about Jesus

Why seek the living among the dead means

- why looking for the righteous among the unrighteous
- why looking for the saints among the perishing
- why looking for the clean among the dirty

The living are the saints while the dead are the sinners

What are you? Are you living or dead? If you are dead, call on Jesus to resurrect you and if you are alive, tell Jesus not to allow you to die. Hear this only those born of spirit shall inherit the kingdom of God.

May the Lord resurrect your life in the name of Jesus

May the good Lord transform you into the kingdom of his dear son in the name of Jesus

May you begin to walk in the way of the Lord in the name of Jesus

The enemies will not cause your spiritual life to die in the name of Jesus.

The mighty things about your life

Jeremiah 33:3 KJV

Call unto me, and I will answer thee, and shew thee great and mighty things, which thou knowest not.

There are three great things you must know about yourself that will make you start seeing yourself as greatly important and not less important.

1. You are wonderfully made

Psalm 139:14 KJV

I will praise thee; for I am fearfully and wonderfully made: marvellous are thy works; and that my soul knoweth right well.

2. You were born or created in the image of God and after his likeness Genesis 1:27 KJV

So God created man in his own image, in the image of God created he him; male and female created he them.

3. You were born or created for a purpose

Genesis 1:28 KJV

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

And God blessed them, and God said unto them, Be fruitful, and multiply, and replenish the earth, and subdue it: and have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the fowl of the air, and over every living thing that moveth upon the earth.

Prophetic pronouncement

The Lord will make you great even greater than anyone in your family in the name of Jesus

May your destiny be fully established in the land of the living in the name of Jesus

The Lord will reverse all curses troubling your destiny in the name of Jesus

The good Lord will reveal great things about yourself to you in the name of Jesus

Great disappointment

Acts 12:19 KJV

And when Herod had sought for him, and found him not, he examined the keepers, and commanded that they should be put to death. And he went down from Judaea to Caesarea, and there abode.

Acts 12:1-11 KJV

Now about that time Herod the king stretched forth his hands to vex certain of the church. [2] And he killed James the brother of John with the sword. [3] And because he saw it pleased the Jews, he proceeded further to take Peter also. (Then were the days of unleavened bread.) [4] And when he had apprehended him, he put him in prison, and delivered him to four quaternions of soldiers to keep him; intending after Easter to bring him forth to the people. [5] Peter therefore was kept in prison: but prayer was made without ceasing of the church unto God for him. [6] And when Herod would have brought him forth, the same night Peter was sleeping between two soldiers, bound with two chains: and the keepers before the door kept the prison. [7] And, behold, the angel of the Lord came upon him, and a light shined in the prison: and he smote Peter on the side, and raised him up, saying, Arise up quickly. And his chains fell off from his hands. [8] And the angel said unto him, Gird

thyself, and bind on thy sandals. And so he did. And he saith unto him, Cast thy garment about thee, and follow me. [9] And he went out, and followed him; and wist not that it was true which was done by the angel; but thought he saw a vision. [10] When they were past the first and the second ward, they came unto the iron gate that leadeth unto the city; which opened to them of his own accord: and they went out, and passed on through one street; and forthwith the angel departed from him. [11] And when Peter was come to himself, he said, Now I know of a surety, that the Lord hath sent his angel, and hath delivered me out of the hand of Herod, and from all the expectation of the people of the Jews.

Herod was a chronic ant Christ and the enemy of good, he was powerful, arrogant and proud, but the day he touched the anointed of God, he was reduced to nothing. All your arrogant, powerful and proud enemy shall become food for the worms.

Apostle Peter escaped death from the hands of Herod, you also will escape death this year in the name of Jesus.

Herod was disappointed over the miraculous escape of Peter, so also you shall escape from the prison of your Herod in the name of Jesus.

Prayer

The Lord will turn their evil counsel to waste you to foolishness in the name of Jesus

The lord will frustrate the conspiracy of darkness over your soul in the name of Jesus.

Those keeping you in prison for execution shall be disappointed and die in your place in the name of Jesus

Your life shall not become toy and experiment in the hands of the enemies in the name of Jesus

When others are dying you shall not die but live to declare the glory of God in the name of Jesus

Evil expectations over your life shall be frustrated in the name of Jesus

God of Elijah will rescue you from the hands of Herod in the name of Jesus

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

Those waiting to celebrate your death shall be disappointed in the name of Jesus

Those calling you down from the mountain top shall be roasted by fire in the name of Jesus

Lord send your angel to slap my Herod in the name of Jesus

The message of Jonah: *Repent or perish*

Luke 13:3 KJV

I tell you, Nay: but, except ye repent, ye shall all likewise perish.

Jonah 3:1-10 KJV

And the word of the Lord came unto Jonah the second time, saying, [2] Arise, go unto Nineveh, that great city, and preach unto it the preaching that I bid thee. [3] So Jonah arose, and went unto Nineveh, according to the word of the Lord . Now Nineveh was an exceeding great city of three days' journey. [4] And Jonah began to enter into the city a day's journey. and he cried, and said, Yet forty days, and Nineveh shall be overthrown. [5] So the people of Nineveh believed God, and proclaimed a fast, and put on sackcloth, from the greatest of them even to the least of them. [6] For word came unto the king of Nineveh, and he arose from his throne, and he laid his robe from him, and covered him with sackcloth, and sat in ashes. [7] And he caused it to be proclaimed and published through Nineveh by the decree of the king and his nobles, saying, Let neither man nor beast, herd nor flock, taste any thing: let them not feed, nor drink water: [8] But let man and beast be covered with sackcloth, and cry mightily unto God: yea, let them turn every one from his evil way, and from the violence that is in their hands. [9] Who can tell if God will turn and repent, and turn away from his fierce anger, that we perish not? [10] And God saw their works, that they turned from their evil way; and God repented of the evil, that he had said that he would do unto them; and he did it not.

The people of Nineveh heard the voice of the Lord through Jonah and they repented from their evil and God did not destroy them as planned.

May your ears be opened to the true gospel of our Lord Jesus Christ and repent from all your evil ways.

If the people of Nineveh had failed to repent, the lord would have destroyed their country within 40 days, may you not be deafened to Godly instructions.

What can make a man not to repent or listen to the message of Jonah?

- wrong / evil leaders
- wrong / false religion
- wrong / false messages
- wrong / fake minister
- unbrokenness
- poor knowledge of God

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

Hear this beloved, failure to repent or listen to the message of Jonah will automatically bring sudden destruction. May the messages you hear not bring destruction upon you in the name of Jesus

May the Lord overthrow all those preaching heresy and false messages among us in the name of Jesus

Messages of destruction shall not become your daily food in the name of Jesus

The Lord will constantly and continually send Jonah to his church in the name of Jesus

O Lord my father make me the Jonah in my generation to speak your truth only in the name of Jesus

The Lord departed from him

Judges 16:6-21 KJV

And Delilah said to Samson, Tell me, I pray thee, wherein thy great strength lieth, and wherewith thou mightest be bound to afflict thee. [7] And Samson said unto her, If they bind me with seven green withs that were never dried, then shall I be weak, and be as another man. [8] Then the lords of the Philistines brought up to her seven green withs which had not been dried, and she bound him with them. [9] Now there were men lying in wait, abiding with her in the chamber. And she said unto him, The Philistines be upon thee, Samson. And he brake the withs, as a thread of tow is broken when it toucheth the fire. So his strength was not known. [10] And Delilah said unto Samson, Behold, thou hast mocked me, and told me lies: now tell me, I pray thee, wherewith thou mightest be bound. [11] And he said unto her, If they bind me fast with new ropes that never were occupied, then shall I be weak, and be as another man. [12] Delilah therefore took new ropes, and bound him therewith, and said unto him, The Philistines be upon thee, Samson. And there were liers in wait abiding in the chamber. And he brake them from off his arms like a thread. [13] And Delilah said unto Samson, Hitherto thou hast mocked me, and told me lies: tell me wherewith thou mightest be bound. And he said unto her, If thou weavest the seven locks of my

head with the web. [14] And she fastened it with the pin, and said unto him, The Philistines be upon thee, Samson. And he awaked out of his sleep, and went away with the pin of the beam, and with the web. [15] And she said unto him, How canst thou say, I love thee, when thine heart is not with me? thou hast mocked me these three times, and hast not told me wherein thy great strength lieth. [16] And it came to pass, when she pressed him daily with her words, and urged him, so that his soul was vexed unto death; [17] That he told her all his heart, and said unto her, There hath not come a razor upon mine head; for I have been a Nazarite unto God from my mother's womb: if I be shaven, then my strength will go from me, and I shall become weak, and be like any other man. [18] And when Delilah saw that he had told her all his heart, she sent and called for the lords of the Philistines, saying, Come up this once, for he hath shewed me all his heart. Then the lords of the Philistines came up unto her, and brought money in their hand. [19] And she made him sleep upon her knees; and she called for a man, and she caused him to shave off the seven locks of his head; and she began to afflict him, and his strength went from him. [20] And she said, The Philistines be upon thee, Samson. And he awoke out of his sleep, and said, I will go out as at other times before, and shake myself. And he wist not that the Lord was departed from him. [21] But the Philistines took him, and put out his eyes, and brought him down to Gaza, and bound him with fetters of brass; and he did grind in the prison house.

In Psalm 27:1 KJV, the bible says The Lord is my light and my salvation; whom shall I fear? the Lord is the strength of my life; of whom shall I be afraid?

When the lord is with a man, the man will possess

- great strength
- great courage
- ability to terrorise his enemies
- great respect and honour

But when the lord departs, the opposite of the above takes place.

May the Lord not depart from you in the name of Jesus

What can make God to depart?

- disobedience
- sin
- arrogance and pride
- careless living
- lust of flesh
- prayerlessness

What must we do? You may be saying that God is still with you but as far as heaven is concern his presence have departed, Samson still prayed despite his problems and the Lord answered him as seen Psalm 20:1 KJV

The Lord hear thee in the day of trouble; the name of the God of Jacob defend thee;

The Lord heard him and answered his prayer. May the Lord answer you in the day of trouble in the name of Jesus

Prayer

- 1. Father Lord expose the Delilah in my life in the name of Jesus
- 2. Anyone planted in my life to expose me to the enemies be exposed and die in the name of Jesus
- 3. My heavenly father, the creator of heaven and earth I pray thee, defend your interest in me against my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 4. I recover my sho I an strength back in the name of Jesus

- 5. O Lord my father open my eyes, ears and spiritual heart to see, hear and discern all the plans of my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 6. My father I pray thee do not depart from me in the name of Jesus
- 7. My father, see the enemies are round about me, let me not be captured by them in the name of Jesus
- 8. O Lord God my father let me not be ashamed and let not my enemies triumph over me in the name of Jesus
- 9. Secret plans to disgrace me because of the anointing of God upon my life be dashed to pieces in the name of Jesus
- 10. Lord daily, in the dream, at work, in the church, in my family and anywhere I go grant me unquestionable victory over my enemies in the name of Jesus

Miracle that is beyond measure

John 6:1-12 KJV

After these things Jesus went over the sea of Galilee, which is the sea of Tiberias. [2] And a great multitude followed him, because they saw his miracles which he did on them that were diseased. [3] And Jesus went up into a mountain, and there he sat with his disciples. [4] And the passover, a feast of the Jews, was nigh. [5] When Jesus then lifted up his eyes, and saw a great company come unto him, he saith unto Philip. Whence shall we buy bread, that these may eat? [6] And this he said to prove him: for he himself knew what he would do. [7] Philip answered him, Two hundred pennyworth of bread is not sufficient for them, that every one of them may take a little. [8] One of his disciples, Andrew, Simon Peter's brother, saith unto him, [9] There is a lad here, which hath five barley loaves, and two small fishes: but what are they among so many? [10] And Jesus said, Make the men sit down. Now there was much grass in the place. So the men sat down, in number about five thousand. [11] And Jesus took the loaves; and when he had given thanks, he distributed to the disciples, and the disciples to them that were set down; and likewise of the fishes as much as they would. [12] When they were filled, he said unto his disciples, Gather up the fragments that remain, that nothing be lost.

The bible says in Proverbs 10:22 KJV

The blessing of the Lord, it maketh rich, and he addeth no sorrow with it.

Jesus blessed the five loaves of bread and two fishes and became food for five thousand people. The great lessons to learn is when the blessing of the Lord is upon your little resources it will become a mega source of joy to many generations.

This miracle cannot be explained mathematically, it was beyond the understanding of the apostles and the people, the miracle or the multiplication could not be measured as no one knows how many loaves were eating individually, but it was recorded that they were full and 12 basket full were gathered as left over.

May the Lord turn you to a miracle of abundance in your generation

Through this encounter may you always have left overs sufficient to others in the name of Jesus

May the fountain of your riches never run dry in the name of Jesus

The secret of your wealth and blessings shall not be uncovered by the enemies in the name of Jesus

The reason why many are still where they are for many years is because they have refused to bring their loaves of bread and fishes to Jesus for blessing thereby causing the blessing to remain stagnant.

Prayer

- 1. Lord Jesus by your divine intervention you turned 5 loaves of bread and two fishes into food to feed 5000 people, by that same authority cause my seed to multiply beyond measure in the name of Jesus
- 2. Miracle of unexplainable wealth transfer locate me in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord give me wealth that added no sorrow in the name of Jesus
- 4. Father Lord release the power to prosper beyond measure upon me in the name of Jesus
- 5. O Lord my father bless my minimum and turn it to maximum in the name of Jesus

21 midnight prayers to scatter the Enemies that refused to sleep

Hear this beloved, it is the present-day believers that are sleeping, the present day enemies are net resting, they are going about like a lion looking for whom to devour.

1 Peter 5:8 KJV

Be sober, be vigilant; because your adversary the devil, as a roaring lion, walketh about, seeking whom he may devour:

The bible tells us in Matthew 13:25 KJV

But while men slept, his enemy came and sowed tares among the wheat, and went his way.

Sadly we are surrounded by the tares sown by the enemies. The bible made it clear in Psalm 118:10-12 KJV

All nations compassed me about: but in the name of the Lord will I destroy them. [11] They compassed me about; yea, they compassed me about: but in the name of the Lord I will destroy them. [12] They compassed me about like bees; they are quenched as the fire of thorns: for in the name of the Lord I will destroy them.

The bible gave us this assurance that in the name of Jesus we shall destroy them

Prayer

I want you to shout Holy ghost fire 21 times and cry with a voice like thunder waste those meeting in dark places plotting to waste me in the name of Jesus

- 2. Where is the Lord God of Elijah appear with your fire and burn to ashes the head witch in charge of my case in the name of Jesus
- 3. Anywhere they are agreeing together to destroy me thunder of God and his earthquake shall consume them in the name of Jesus
- 4. O God arise and terrify my night enemies with your fire in the name of Jesus
- 5. In the name of Jesus I shall prevail over ten of thousands of my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 6. O Lord my father send your weep of fire into my foundation and chase out all foundational destroying demons in the name of Jesus

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

- 7. Those waiting for me to sleep before attacking me shall die while waiting in the name of Jesus
- 8. Holy ghost in your anger defend your name in me in the name of Jesus
- 9. I and my household shall not end as prey in the net to the mighty and terrible enemies in the name of Jesus
- 10. Lord search through the 4 corners of this earth and utterly destroy the hiding places of my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 11. Arrows fired from the marine kingdom to capture me in the name of Jesus fail and backfire in the name of Jesus
- 12. Lord Jesus search through my life with your fire and uproot all demonic plantations in the name of Jesus
- 13. Father Lord revive my spiritual life so that I will not slumber again in the name of Jesus
- 14. The Lord turn the counsel of my household enemies to foolishness in the name of Jesus

- 15. The Lord remove and burn to ashes the veil of darkness covering my destiny and spiritual life in the name of Jesus
- 16. Witches and wizards pretending to be my friends fire! Fire!! Fire!!! Kill them all in the name of Jesus
- 17. Lord those that must die for my life to move forward, die in the name of Jesus
- 18. Father Lord give me complete victory over my boasting enemies in the name of Jesus
- 19. Fire from heaven burn to ashes and destroy the weapons, the altars and the habitation of my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 20. Those experimenting with my life and destiny shall die by the sword before day break in the name of Jesus
- 21. With my eyes shall I see the punishment and the shame of my enemies in the name of Jesus.

Victory with psalms

Please confess the scripture below and say I receive the victory in this in Jesus name.

Psalm 18:1-50 KJV

I will love thee, O Lord, my strength. [2] The Lord is my rock, and my fortress, and my deliverer; my God, my strength, in whom I will trust; my buckler, and the horn of my salvation, and my high tower. [3] I will call upon the Lord, who is worthy to be praised: so shall I be saved from mine enemies. [4] The sorrows of death compassed me, and the floods of ungodly men made me afraid. [5] The sorrows of hell compassed me about: the snares of death prevented me. [6] In my distress I called upon the Lord, and cried unto my God: he heard my voice out of his temple. and my cry came before him, even into his ears. [7] Then the earth shook and trembled; the foundations also of the hills moved and were shaken, because he was wroth. [8] There went up a smoke out of his nostrils. and fire out of his mouth devoured: coals were kindled by it. [9] He bowed the heavens also, and came down: and darkness was under his feet. [10] And he rode upon a cherub, and did fly: yea, he did fly upon the wings of the wind. [11] He made darkness his secret place; his pavilion round about him were dark waters and thick clouds of the skies. [12] At the brightness that was before him his thick clouds passed, hail stones and coals of fire. [13] The Lord also thundered in the heavens, and the Highest gave his voice; hail stones and coals of fire. [14] Yea, he sent out his arrows, and scattered them; and he shot out lightnings, and discomfited them. [15] Then the channels of waters were seen, and the foundations of the world were discovered at thy rebuke, O Lord, at the blast of the breath of thy nostrils. [16] He sent from above, he took me. he drew me out of many waters. [17] He delivered me from my strong enemy, and from them which hated me: for they were too strong for me. [18] They prevented me in the day of my calamity: but the Lord was my stay. [19] He brought me forth also into a large place; he delivered me, because he delighted in me. [20] The Lord rewarded me according to my righteousness; according to the cleanness of my hands hath he recompensed me. [21] For I have kept the ways of the Lord, and have not wickedly departed from my God. [22] For all his judgments were before me, and I did not put away his statutes from me. [23] I was also upright before him, and I kept myself from mine iniquity. [24] Therefore hath the Lord recompensed me according to my righteousness, according to the cleanness of my hands in his eyesight. [25] With the merciful thou wilt shew thyself merciful; with an upright man thou wilt shew thyself upright; [26] With the pure thou wilt shew thyself pure; and with the froward thou wilt shew thyself froward. [27] For thou wilt save the afflicted people; but wilt bring down high looks. [28] For thou wilt light

my candle: the Lord my God will enlighten my darkness. [29] For by thee I have run through a troop; and by my God have I leaped over a wall. [30] As for God, his way is perfect: the word of the Lord is tried: he is a buckler to all those that trust in him. [31] For who is God save the Lord ? or who is a rock save our God? [32] It is God that girdeth me with strength, and maketh my way perfect. [33] He maketh my feet like hinds' feet, and setteth me upon my high places. [34] He teacheth my hands to war, so that a bow of steel is broken by mine arms. [35] Thou hast also given me the shield of thy salvation: and thy right hand hath holden me up, and thy gentleness hath made me great. [36] Thou hast enlarged my steps under me, that my feet did not slip. [37] I have pursued mine enemies, and overtaken them: neither did I turn again till they were consumed. [38] I have wounded them that they were not able to rise: they are fallen under my feet. [39] For thou hast girded me with strength unto the battle: thou hast subdued under me those that rose up against me. [40] Thou hast also given me the necks of mine enemies; that I might destroy them that hate me. [41] They cried, but there was none to save them: even unto the Lord, but he answered them not. [42] Then did I beat them small as the dust before the wind: I did cast them out as the dirt in the streets. [43] Thou hast delivered me from the strivings of the people; and thou hast made me the head of the heathen: a people whom I have not known shall serve me. [44] As soon as they hear of me, they shall obey me: the strangers shall submit themselves unto me. [45] The strangers shall fade away, and be afraid out of their close places. [46] The Lord liveth; and blessed be my rock; and let the God of my salvation be exalted. [47] It is God that avengeth me, and subdueth the people under me. [48] He delivereth me from mine enemies: yea, thou liftest me up above those that rise up against me: thou hast delivered me from the violent man. [49] Therefore will I give thanks unto thee, O Lord, among the heathen, and sing praises unto thy name. [50] Great deliverance giveth he to his king; and sheweth mercy to his anointed, to David, and to his seed for evermore.

Prayer

The Lord give you complete victory over your enemies and may you not turn back till they are all destroyed in the name of Jesus

Evil spirit in a life

Luke 22:1-6 KJV

Now the feast of unleavened bread drew nigh, which is called the Passover. [2] And the chief priests and scribes sought how they might kill him; for they feared the people. [3] Then entered Satan into Judas surnamed Iscariot, being of the number of the twelve. [4] And he went his way, and communed with the chief priests and captains, how he might betray him unto them. [5] And they were glad, and covenanted to give him money. [6] And he promised, and sought opportunity to betray him unto them in the absence of the multitude.

Matthew 12:43-45 KJV

When the unclean spirit is gone out of a man, he walketh through dry places, seeking rest, and findeth none. [44] Then he saith, I will return into my house from whence I came out; and when he is come, he findeth it empty, swept, and garnished. [45] Then goeth he, and taketh with himself seven other spirits more wicked than himself, and they enter in and dwell there: and the last state of that man is worse than the first. Even so shall it be also unto this wicked generation.

1 Samuel 18:7-11 KJV

And the women answered one another as they played, and said, Saul hath slain his thousands, and David his ten thousands. [8] And Saul was very wroth, and the saying displeased him; and he said, They have ascribed unto David ten thousands, and to me they have ascribed but thousands: and what can he have more but the kingdom? [9] And Saul eyed David from that day and forward. [10] And it came to pass on the morrow, that the evil spirit from God came upon Saul, and he prophesied in the midst of the house: and David played with his hand, as at other times: and there was a javelin in Saul's hand. [11] And Saul cast the javelin; for he said, I will smite David even to the wall with it. And David avoided out of his presence twice.

1 Samuel 19:8-10 KJV

And there was war again: and David went out, and fought with the Philistines, and slew them with a great slaughter; and they fled from him. [9] And the evil spirit from the Lord was upon Saul, as he sat in his house with his javelin in his hand: and David played with his hand. [10] And Saul sought to smite David even to the wall with the javelin; but he slipped away out of Saul's presence, and he smote the javelin into the wall: and David fled, and escaped that night.

In the scriptures above, we could see that certain evil behavioural pattern are common or evident that a life is under the control of evil spirit.

In this age, many are carriers of these demons and unknown to them they never see their behaviour as anything.

The bible says in listed some of the characteristics of a life that is under demonic attack

2 Timothy 3:1-7 KJV

This know also, that in the last days perilous times shall come. [2] For men shall be lovers of their own selves, covetous, boasters, proud, blasphemers, disobedient to parents, unthankful, unholy, [3] Without natural affection, trucebreakers, false accusers, incontinent, fierce, despisers of those that are good, [4] Traitors, heady, high minded, lovers of pleasures more than lovers of God; [5] Having a form of godliness, but denying the power thereof: from such turn away. [6] For of this sort are they which creep into houses, and lead captive silly women laden with sins, led away with divers lusts, [7] Ever learning, and never able to come to the knowledge of the truth.

More are listed in Galatians 5:19-21 KJV

Now the works of the flesh are manifest, which are these; Adultery, fornication, uncleanness, lasciviousness, [20] Idolatry, witchcraft, hatred, variance, emulations, wrath, strife, seditions, heresies, [21] Envyings, murders, drunkenness, revellings, and such like: of the which

I tell you before, as I have also told you in time past, that they which do such things shall not inherit the kingdom of God.

In this age, constant sexual intercourse in the dream, dressing exposing the nakedness of man, incest and legalizing of homosexuality (sodomy spirit), young people drinking their lives to death, infidelity, lying, bearing of false testimony, witchcraft practise etc are some of the traits to confirm that a life is under demonic attack...

What must we do?

First is to recognise the presence of these behaviours, secondly address them one after the other, attacking their roots, closing all doors to their entry, destroying their habitation and their weapons lastly barricade your life with holy ghost fire

Weapons to use in addressing the above

- the name of Jesus
- the blood of Jesus
- fire of the holy ghost
- thunder of God
- earthquake
- rock of ages

Prayer

- 1. I attack with fire the root of (put the evil behaviour in this) in my life in the name of Jesus
- 2. I shut the door through which this demon entered my life in the name of Jesus
- 3. Rock of ages crush to pieces the habitation and altars of this demon in the name of Jesus
- 4. Father Lord give me victory over all evil spirits parading my life in the name of Jesus
- 5.I unseat and dethrone Satan and all demons in the name of Jesus

21 violent prayers to destroy dream wasters

Your dream is a bigger picture of what heaven desire for you. Sadly many will die without living their dreams and many will lose their lives ignorantly trying to confront the dream wasters.

*Who are the dream wasters?

Matthew 10:36 KJV

And a man's foes shall be they of his own household.

Hear this bitter truth, without the enemies within, enemies outside will find it hard to operate.

The first on the list of dream wasters is

- evil family members
- demonic and occultic parent
- jealous and envious brothers and sisters
- angry in-laws
- wicked leaders
- fake and false prophets
- jealous wife or husband
- household demons and idols
- witches and wizards
- star gazers and hijackers

- *What must we do?*
- Be sober and be vigilant
- be wise like the serpent
- possess a discerning spirit
- learn to keep deep secrets
- learn to fight spiritual warfare
- learn to pray always
- learn to hear clearly and directly from God
- fight till you are settled and secured.

The scripture below explained how Wicked and terrible the dream wasters are

Genesis 37:5-20 KJV

And Joseph dreamed a dream, and he told it his brethren: and they hated him yet the more. [6] And he said unto them, Hear, I pray you, this dream which I have dreamed: [7] For, behold, we were binding sheaves in the field, and, lo, my sheaf arose, and also stood upright; and, behold, your sheaves stood round about, and made obeisance to my sheaf. [8] And his brethren said to him, Shalt thou indeed reign over us? or shalt thou indeed have dominion over us? And they hated him yet the more for his dreams, and for his words. [9] And he dreamed yet another dream, and told it his brethren, and said, Behold, I have dreamed a dream more;

and, behold, the sun and the moon and the eleven stars made obeisance to me. [10] And he told it to his father, and to his brethren: and his father rebuked him, and said unto him, What is this dream that thou hast dreamed? Shall I and thy mother and thy brethren indeed come to bow down ourselves to thee to the earth? [11] And his brethren envied him: but his father observed the saying. [12] And his brethren went to feed their father's flock in Shechem. [13] And Israel said unto Joseph, Do not thy brethren feed the flock in Shechem? come, and I will send thee unto them. And he said to him, Here am I. [14] And he said to him, Go, I pray thee, see whether it be well with thy brethren, and well with the flocks; and bring me word again. So he sent him out of the vale of Hebron, and he came to Shechem. [15] And a certain man found him, and, behold, he was wandering in the field: and the man asked him, saying, What seekest thou? [16] And he said, I seek my brethren: tell me, I pray thee, where they feed their flocks. [17] And the man said, They are departed hence; for I heard them say, Let us go to Dothan. And Joseph went after his brethren, and found them in Dothan. [18] And when they saw him afar off, even before he came near unto them, they conspired against him to slay him. [19] And they said one to another, Behold, this dreamer cometh. [20] Come now therefore, and let us slay him, and cast him into some pit, and we will say, Some evil beast hath devoured him: and we shall see what will become of his dreams.

- 1. Father Lord in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth open my eyes to see the enemies of my dream in the name of Jesus
- 2. Those plotting to destroy me because of my dream shall die in the name of Jesus
- 3. O God arise and give me a new dream life that cannot be killed in the name of Jesus
- 4. Those troubling my destiny because of my dream, the Lord shall trouble in the name of Jesus
- 5. Envious household enemies that are joining hands with external enemies to destroy me be wasted by fire in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth
- 6. Those planning to sell me because of my glorious destiny be disappointed in the name of Jesus
- 7. O God arise and catapult me to a new land where my dream will flourish in the name of Jesus

- 8. In the mist of opposition, my dream shall flourish and bear fruits in the name of Jesus
- 9. Jesus Christ of Nazareth resurrect my dead dreams in the name of Jesus
- 10. Sword of death visit all those pursuing me with the spirit of death in the name of Jesus
- 11. Those confronting the eagle of my life with charms die shamefully in the name of Jesus
- 12. Bewitchment upon my dream catch fire in the name of Jesus
- 13. Evil hands manipulating my dreams wither and dry up to the dream in the name of Jesus
- 14. Satanic tongue causing my dream to fail day and night catch fire in the name of Jesus
- 15. Evil eyes monitoring the progress of my dream receive blindness in the name of Jesus

- 16. O God arise and cut off all evil legs tramping upon my dreams in the name of Jesus
- 17. Satanic pot placed upon my dream break and scatter to pieces in the name of Jesus
- 18. Evil arrows fired at my dream hear the word of the lord backfire in the name of Jesus
- 19. Father Lord enlarge my dream to disgrace my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 20. Those saying it is over for my dream shall bow before me in shame when my dreams are fulfilled in the name of Jesus
- 21. Those saying what shall become of my dream shall serve me all the days of their lives in the name of Jesus

The pit, Portifer and the prison shall not stop my dreams in the name of Jesus

I shall not miss my appointed time to be in the palace in the name of Jesus

Collecting divine reward

2 Samuel 6:6-12 KJV

And when they came to Nachon's threshingfloor, Uzzah put forth his hand to the ark of God, and took hold of it; for the oxen shook it . [7] And the anger of the Lord was kindled against Uzzah; and God smote him there for his error; and there he died by the ark of God. [8] And David was displeased, because the Lord had made a breach upon Uzzah: and he called the name of the place Perez-uzzah to this day. [9] And David was afraid of the Lord that day, and said, How shall the ark of the Lord come to me? [10] So David would not remove the ark of the Lord unto him into the city of David: but David carried it aside into the house of Obed-edom the Gittite. [11] And the ark of the Lord continued in the house of Obed-edom the Gittite three months; and the Lord blessed Obed-edom, and all his household. [12] And it was told king David, saying, The Lord hath blessed the house of Obed-edom, and all that pertaineth unto him, because of the ark of God. So David went and brought up the ark of God from the house of Obed-edom into the city of David with gladness.

There was divine visitation of immeasurable reward upon the household of Obed- Edom for accepting the Ark of God,

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

Do you know that the same ark that killed Uzzah blessed the household of Obed-edom.

Lessons to learn from this scripture.

1.Proverbs 10:22 KJV

The blessing of the Lord, it maketh rich, and he addeth no sorrow with it.

God's blessings come with no sorrow

- 2. When the lord visits a house, all things will change
- 3. God is a respecter of nobody
- 4. God blesses as he wishes
- 5. As long as God is with you his blessings remains
- 6. A man will reap whatever he sows
- 7. God's reward is according to your genuine obedience

How to collect your divine reward?

Hebrews 11:6 KJV

But without faith it is impossible to please him: for he that cometh to God must believe that he is, and that he is a rewarder of them that diligently seek him.

You will be divinely rewarded based on

- your selfless service to God

THY NAME SHALL BE GREAT

- your deeds
- your desire towards the things of God

For everything you do, there are rewards waiting you.

Obed-edom was divinely rewarded because he accepted the Ark and the ministry of looking after God's properties and was blessed.

He was not a pastor but a caretaker of the Ark

He was not a prophets but a cleaner of God's temple

He was not a seer but a custodian of God's treasure

What has the Lord committed into your hands to do? Do it diligently and open the door of divine reward for your entire household.

- 1. My father if I'm not worthy of the service I'm rendering to you give me my own assignment that will bring your blessing upon my household in the name of Jesus
- 2. Father Lord I pray thee let me not see your anger while trying to do your work in the name of Jesus

- 3. Father Lord, your ark remained with Obed-edom and you blessed him, as long as I'm in this service bless me in the name of Jesus
- 4. When other are running away from doing your work, Lord help me to remain faithful, obedient and committed in the name of Jesus
- 5. Father Lord help me to serve you to the end and not fall by the wayside in the name of Jesus
- 6. Father Lord bless me with great blessings that will end my suffering and reproach in the name of Jesus
- 7. Father Lord replace my garment of shame with royal garment in the name of Jesus
- 8. Father Lord as the name of Obed-edom entered the bible because of the Ark of God, let my name be writing in the book of life because of my service for you in the name of Jesus
- 9. Lord Jesus direct me daily in the way I should go and what I should do in the name of Jesus

10. Father Lord I'm hear use me and send me anywhere you need me for your glory to manifest in the name of Jesus

Escaping the evil in the heart of man

Jeremiah 17:9 KJV

The heart is deceitful above all things, and desperately wicked: who can know it?

Genesis 6:5-6 KJV

And God saw that the wickedness of man was great in the earth, and that every imagination of the thoughts of his heart was only evil continually. [6] And it repented the Lord that he had made man on the earth, and it grieved him at his heart.

The bible says who can know the heart of a man, what a great question and mystery, meaning you don't know the heart of your

- biological parents
- brothers and sisters
- friends
- pastors
- leaders
- kings etc

Statement of facts about this lesson

- 1. After Adam man is born with evil
- 2. What is inside is the true man and not the outward appearance
- 3. Man's intentions are continually evil
- 4. Man's laughter is deceitful and does not reflect the true man

How can evil entered a man.

Since we were born through Adam and Eve, "Psalm 51:5 KJV Behold, I was sharpen in iniquity; and in sin did my mother conceive me" we all have evil seed deposited in us and it's only when we water the seed that it will grow,

- envy
- anger
- bitterness
- rivalry
- demonic competition
- laziness
- poor understanding of self
- lack of vision

Will make evil to flourish in a heart

Examples in the bible of people that fell into the trap of wicked heart and the one that escaped it..

Genesis 4:8 KJV

And Cain talked with Abel his brother: and it came to pass, when they were in the field, that Cain rose up against Abel his brother, and slew him

1 Samuel 18:9-11 KJV

And Saul eyed David from that day and forward. [10] And it came to pass on the morrow, that the evil spirit from God came upon Saul, and he prophesied in the midst of the house: and David played with his hand, as at other times: and there was a javelin in Saul's hand. [11] And Saul cast the javelin; for he said, I will smite David even to the wall with it. And David avoided out of his presence twice.

1 Samuel 19:9-10 KJV

And the evil spirit from the Lord was upon Saul, as he sat in his house with his javelin in his hand: and David played with his hand. [10] And Saul sought to smite David even to the wall with the javelin; but he slipped away out of Saul's presence, and he smote the javelin into the wall: and David fled, and escaped that night.

Declare this with a loud voice

- I pull down the door by which evil is entering my heart in the name of Jesus
- Anyone repaying me evil for good evil shall not depart from your household in the name of Jesus
- Father Lord expose all wicked and deceitful hearts around me in the name of Jesus

What must we do?

Stop getting when people do you evil knowing well that you too can do same to others

- repent from all known sins
- daily purge your life with the blood of Jesus and fire of the holy ghost
- seek understanding of spiritual things
- learn to hear from God through: dreams, words of knowledge, visions, prophesies etc
- be a bible addict and daily feed on the word of God

Hebrews 4:12 KJV

For the word of God is quick, and powerful, and sharper than any twoedged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul and spirit, and of the joints and marrow, and is a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.

- be filled with the Holy ghost

Acts 5:1-4 KJV

But a certain man named Ananias, with Sapphira his wife, sold a possession, [2] And kept back part of the price, his wife also being privy to it, and brought a certain part, and laid it at the apostles' feet. [3] But Peter said, Ananias, why hath Satan filled thine heart to lie to the Holy Ghost, and to keep back part of the price of the land? [4] Whiles it remained, was it not thine own? and after it was sold, was it not in thine own power? why hast thou conceived this thing in thine heart? thou hast not lied unto men, but unto God.

- 1. O Lord my father rescue my soul from the sword of the wicked in the name of Jesus
- 2. Those who hate me and are laughing to destroy me, the Lord destroy you in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord daily expose all the secret plans to destroy me in the name of Jesus

- 4. Those that are thinking evil of me shall fall into their own evil in the name of Jesus
- 5. Lord proof yourself as God to my enemies who are hiding in the secret
- 6. Jesus Christ of Nazareth fill me with holy ghost and power to know the heart of my enemies in the name of Jesus
- 7. Father Lord destroy whatever the enemies are using to cover my spiritual eyes in the name of Jesus
- 8. I shall not be deafened to the voice of the holy spirit in the name of Jesus
- 9. Father Lord help me to escape the arrows of the enemies in the name of Jesus
- 10. Woe unto you that hate me without cause and are blocking my progress in the name of Jesus

21 prayers to break loose from personal, collective and ancestral captivity

Captivity is bad, it's a bad thing that could ever happened to anyone. Captivity so called in other word, Bondage, it hinders progress, frustrates efforts, makes a wise man mad, destroys dreams and visions and above all promote chronic hardship, pains, suffering and poverty.

I'm praying that the lord set you free from ancestral bondage in the name of Jesus

Read, meditate and pray with the scripture below and see the great deliverance that will take place in your life

Exodus 12:13 KJV

And the blood shall be to you for a token upon the houses where ye are: and when I see the blood, I will pass over you, and the plague shall not be upon you to destroy you, when I smite the land of Egypt.

Exodus 14:13-14 KJV

And Moses said unto the people, Fear ye not, stand still, and see the salvation of the Lord, which he will shew to you today: for the Egyptians whom ye have seen today, ye shall see them again no more for ever. [14] The Lord shall fight for you, and ye shall hold your peace.

Isaiah 49:24-26 KJV

Shall the prey be taken from the mighty, or the lawful captive delivered? [25] But thus saith the Lord, Even the captives of the mighty shall be taken away, and the prey of the terrible shall be delivered: for I will contend with him that contendeth with thee, and I will save thy children. [26] And I will feed them that oppress thee with their own flesh; and they shall be drunken with their own blood, as with sweet wine: and all flesh shall know that I the Lord am thy Saviour and thy Redeemer, the mighty One of Jacob.

Luke 13:11-13 KJV

And, behold, there was a woman which had a spirit of infirmity eighteen years, and was bowed together, and could in no wise lift up herself. [12] And when Jesus saw her, he called her to him, and said unto her, Woman, thou art loosed from thine infirmity. [13] And he laid his hands on her: and immediately she was made straight, and glorified God.

Acts 16:25-26 KJV

And at midnight Paul and Silas prayed, and sang praises unto God: and the prisoners heard them. [26] And suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken: and immediately all the doors were opened, and every one's bands were loosed.

- 1. Father Lord send your earthquake to destroy the foundation of my ancestral prison in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth
- 2. Earthquake of the Lord break all evil chains of captivity away from my life in the name of Jesus
- 3. Father Lord visit and repair my foundation with your fire in the name of Jesus
- 4. My father! My father!! Bring me out from personal, collective and ancestral prison in the name of Jesus.
- 5. Powers keeping me and my family in captivity release us and die in the name of Jesus

- 6. Blood of Jesus deliver my foundation from captivity in the name of Jesus
- 7. Evil blood shed by my ancestors that is now crying against me be silenced forever by the blood of Jesus in the name of Jesus
- 8. Thou Lion of Judah appear in the camp of my troublers and tear them to pieces in the name of Jesus
- 9. Lion of Judah feed on the flesh and blood of satanic gatekeeper holding my life in captivity in the name of Jesus
- 10. Any power that wants to bring my children into captivity rock of ages fall upon them in the name of Jesus
- 11. By fire by force Lord end my captivity and put my enemies in captivity in the name of Jesus
- 12. Evil altars holding my money, career, business, health, marriage in captivity break and scatter to pieces in the name of Jesus

- 13. Lord Jesus rain sudden destruction upon the enemies that are waiting to rejoice over me in the name of Jesus
- 14. Fire from heaven visit my village shrine and the village T junction and completely destroy what has been done to keep my family in captivity in the name of Jesus
- 15. Strongman hire to hold me down in bondage the Lord of host destroy you in the name of Jesus
- 16. Any power reporting me to the village witches and wizards in order to put me in bondage, I declare you dead in the name of Jesus
- 17. My father rescue my soul and the souls of my children from captivity in the name of Jesus
- 18. Whether the enemies likes it or not I'm set free, my children and my entire lineage are set free from captivity in the name of Jesus
- 19. Arrows fired to capture and to put my star and the eagle of my destiny in captivity, fail and backfire in the name of Jesus

- 20. From this day I and my entire household refused to eat the bread of sorrow and water of affliction in the name of Jesus
- 21. Any power that wants me back in captivity I command your blood and flesh to dry up till you die a painful death in the name of Jesus



About the Author

Adetokunbo Abidoye was born in Lagos, married to Winnie Abidoye and blessed with two wonderful children, Emmanuel and Kelly Abidoye. He had his early nursery and primary school education at Twins' Day

Nursery and Primary School, Palm Avenue, Lagos and later went to Mushin Community Primary School, Lagos to complete his primary education. The author completed his secondary education at Matori Grammar School in 1988 and Higher Diploma in Applied Chemistry from Yaba College of Technology, Lagos. After graduation, he moved to South Africa where he bagged a Master of Business Administration (MBA) specialising in General Management, and later to the Republic of Ireland in 2002. In 2013, he graduated from the University College, Dublin (UCD) with a degree in Community and Housing Studies. Adetokunbo Abidoye started his ministry assignment in the Redeemed Christian Church of God in South Africa and later moved to The Mountain of Fire and Miracles Ministries in 2002. Currently, he is the Overseer at The Mountain of Fire and Miracles Ministries, Region 4, (Republic of Ireland) and is the founder of Reality Group of which Reality Apostolic Ministry is a subsidiary The author has interests in preaching, teaching the Bible, writing,

motivational speaking, cleaning, training, real estate development and management.

For prayer and counselling please contact us at:

Website: http://thepathofrighteousness.com/reality-daily-prayer-books

Email: info@reality.ie Tel: +353 89 486 4413

